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SUBJECT:  Letter of Clarification No. 1 

HAS Airport Operations and Management Software System 
 
REFERENCE:  RFP No.: S36-T32552 
 
TO:   All Prospective Respondents 
 
This Letter of Clarification is issued for the following reasons: 

 
1. To add the following language to 4.0 Scope of Work, Section 4.3 Implementation Activities.  

 
Implementation Strategy:  HAS intends to implement and operate the new system as quickly as 
possible after award (Phase 1). This would allow HAS to rapidly take advantage of native system 
capability.  Subsequent activities (Phase 2) would include integration with other systems, API with 
HAS data warehouse and historical data ETL. It is expected some Phase 1 and Phase 2 activities 
would likely overlap. 

 
2. To provide responses to the questions received from prospective proposers prior to the deadline 

to submit questions: 
 

1. Question Please provide the total number of end users and administrators who 
need access to the system. 

  Response Total Users (Field Data collectors/Viewers): 300+  
Concurrent Users: 100    
Administrators/Power Users: 20 

2. Question For the Pilot Test outlined in 3.1.1 Will HAS provide vendors their GIS data 
for asset overlays, inspections forms, copies of specific reports and flow 
charts for each of the Scope of Work items? 

  Response HAS will provide minimal required GIS layers and data, as appropriate, to 
support stand-up of a working environment that can exercise identified HAS Use 
Cases. 
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3. Question 3.1.1 Description of Pilot Test:  Can the Houston Airport System (HAS) 
provide more information on technical expectations regarding the Pilot 
Period? There are several technical components such as third-party 
integrations, notifications, and uptime requirements which require 
development effort beyond the ten-day installation and configuration 
period and critical input from HAS staff.  

  Response The Pilot Test should be robust enough, within the 10-day prep/installation 
period, to provide a context specific (HAS Use Cases) hands-on working 
environment. HAS staff will be available to provide the minimal data and details 
during the prep/installation period to create such a working environment. HAS 
staff will subsequently exercise the environment to further evaluate the solution 
against the RFP requirements. HAS does NOT expect any third-party 
integrations during Pilot Test. 

4. Question 4.1.9:  If the Solution will include data migration services from the legacy 
HAS data system, please explain the business need to integrate with the 
HAS Asset Management Work Order Management System.  

  Response HAS requires integration (two-way) with Asset Management Work Order 
System to rapidly facilitate airfield asset repair/replacement orders and to track 
order status. This should include the ability to pull filtered reports on asset 
orders. 

5. Question 4.2 Data Migration:  Can HAS provide more information on the format, 
schema, and size of existing HAS legacy data?  

  Response HAS’s current Sequel database is 60+GB in size which includes various 
attachments such as .docx, .pptx, .pdf, .mov files. 

6. Question 4.1.14:  Please describe the level of experience utilizing Esri GIS software 
at HAS? Specifically, beyond the GIS team, expanding to business and 
operations units?  

  Response HAS currently has 350+ end users of the ARCGIS enterprise. Most are novice 
and/or basic users (limited experience). 

7. Question Part IV 1.0:  Is HAS willing to accept electronic submission of Proposal, 
Offer and Submittal form, and Cost and Financial Stability documents?  

  Response The City is requesting proposers to submit one (1) printed original Proposal with 
an Offer and Submittal form signed in BLUE ink or electronically, one (1) printed 
copy of the Proposal, and five (5) electronic copies of the Proposal on five (5) 
separate USB drives. The Cost Proposal and Financial Stability documents 
should be submitted on a USB drive in a separate envelope.  

8. Question 1F (Functionality Matrix):  Can the HAS confirm that the 50MB attachment 
size limit is for a single document or multiple documents? For example, 
can users upload several documents up to 10MB which total more than 
50MB total or does HAS anticipate single documents up to 50MB in size?  

  Response HAS requires the ability to upload one or more large files (10MB+). 

9. Question 1E (Functionality Matrix):  Please provide additional details on linking 
capabilities requirement. Is HAS referring to hyperlinked documents that 
exist externally or on an HAS network?  

  Response Referential "linking", or tagging, two or more issues, events, documents, 
artifacts; The ability to associate these items for rapid access and viewing.  

10. Question 1L (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS list notification delivery format? Ex. 
Email, SMS, etc.? 
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  Response HAS requires Email (SMTP) and Text (SMS) notifications, individually or 
simultaneously. 

11. Question 2B (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS clarify the intended meaning of a “self-
inspection data element”?  

  Response HAS performs self-inspections and the data contained in these records are the 
data elements. 

12. Question 5B, 11B (Functionality Matrix):  Does HAS anticipate that creation of a task 
and corresponding task assignment take place prior to an inspection or 
event? Can HAS confirm that if so, it is not the active inspector who is 
initiating the form/log entry?  

  Response Yes, HAS intends to create tasks outside inspections or events. 

13. Question 5C (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS provide information on the schema 
and format of non-EAM Asset data? Is HAS currently using unique 
identifiers for the Assets? 

  Response Yes, HAS uses unique identifiers for each asset and can provide that data (also 
in ARCGIS). 

14. Question 6A (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS provide more information on the 
expectations for viewing and sharing NOTAMS data?  

  Response HAS requires textual display of NOTAMS; however, would like visual display 
layer on associated maps.  

15. Question 9A (Functionality Matrix):  Does HAS have a HxGN EAM subject matter 
expert to assist in the integration connection as part of this project?  

  Response Yes, HAS has an EAM expert/administrator who will be part of this project. 

16. Question 10B (Functionality Matrix):  Is the Trak Smart Restroom data available as 
a Rest service?  

  Response Trak Smart Restroom data resides in the HAS data warehouse and is available 
via API. 

17. Question 10C (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS confirm the data format and 
accessibility of integration with the incident management software? 

  Response This is a third-party system, HAS continues to determine format and 
accessibility. 

18. Question 10D (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS confirm the data format and 
accessibility of integration with other common airport solutions? 

  Response Yes. In addition to the specifically identified integrations, HAS requires 
establishing an interface (API) connection to the HAS Data Warehouse. 

19. Question 16E (Functionality Matrix):  Can HAS provide additional information on the 
News Feed and delivery formats? 

  Response News Feed functionality provides the capability to identify and send newly 
published/created content, and updates, within the system to be pushed to all 
parties who have access to receive that information; and prompts responsible 
individuals to take appropriate action. 

20. Question General:  How many users, total and concurrent, will require access to the 
cloud-deployed system? Please provide an estimated breakdown by role 
such as power users, field data collectors, viewers, etc. 
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  Response Total Users (Field Data collectors/Viewers): 300+    
Concurrent Users: 100    
Administrators/Power Users: 20 

21. Question 4.4.2.1 Maintenance Support:  Given the considerable cost of 
infrastructure needed to support 99.999% uptime, is HAS considering 
alternative uptime standards such as 95%, 99%, or 99.9%?  

  Response HAS requires 99.5%, or better, uptime. 

22. Question 16 (Functionality Matrix):  Does HAS have an existing ERM system in 
place?  

  Response No. 

23. Question  Are you looking for a standard SaaS deployment or is the CC open to a 
self-hosted model? 

  Response HAS prefers an off-prem SaaS solution but would consider an on-prem self-
hosted solution. 

24. Question What on-premises solution are in your current Facilities technology 
Stack?  

  Response HAS leverages virtual application and DB servers with VMWare on Dell 
hardware. HAS principally deploys and manages MS (Windows & Sequel) 
virtual environments. 

25. Question What are the reasons or pain points that have led you to consider 
changing your current system or software? 

  Response HAS is looking to take advantage of "state of the industry" features and 
functions with the ability to better integrate with other applications/system. HAS 
routinely looks for burgeoning technologies to improve operational efficiency 
and effectiveness. 

26. Question Does the CC have a defined budget for this project? If there is not a 
defined budget, please provide a budget range? 

  Response HAS does not have a defined budget but the planned range for this solution is 
$60k-100k annually. HAS anticipates additional implementation and migration 
costs. 

27. Question How much legacy data do you wish to migrate from your existing 
solutions? What format is that data currently? (Total Number of records 
and the number of database tables)? 

  Response HAS’s current Sequel database is 60+GB. Records and tables is TBD. 

28. Question  Will you provide the data in our format? (For e.g., if we provide an excel 
template)  

  Response HAS can perform a data format conversion based on Vendor provided template. 

29. Question As part of the migration process, do you have any documents that need 
to be migrated to the new system? If so, could you please provide us with 
an estimate of the number of documents, their file formats, and their 
current location? 

  Response Documents include .docx, .pptx, .pdf, .mov files, and stored in the images file. 

30. Question Do you require a specific database for this solution? 

  Response No. 

31. Question Is it possible to provide different proposals for different SaaS solutions? 

  Response Yes. 
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32. Question For the inspections that you need to conduct, could you please tell us how 
many different types of inspection forms you require and what the 
process looks like for conducting those inspections? Additionally, are 
there any approval steps that need to be taken during the inspection 
process and if so,  could you describe them? 

  Response HAS currently conducts more than 20 different types of inspections, each 
requiring unique forms with unique workflows and review/approval processes. 

33. Question 11. Req 8c, Integrate with Operations Module to have visibility into Safety 
or Operation incidents.  Can you provide the details that need to be 
migrated? Inbound or Outbound? 

  Response "Operations Module" and "Safety Module" are terms that reflect the respective 
management Ops and Safety management functions within the new system. 
HAS expects data exchange between the "modules" within the new system, 
given the appropriate roles and permissions. 

34. Question Req 9g, Technical integration documentation describing API connectivity 
between "3rd Party Report" and HAS AM. à What is "3rd Party Report" 

  Response "3rd Party Reports" are HAS-generated reports as result of incidents such as 
damage to city property or injuries and involve non-HAS employees (i.e., Airline 
employees, passengers, COH employees). These reports support expenditures 
of funds to mitigate risk, repair damages or litigation. 

35. Question Req 9i, Bi-Directional integration HAS AM to allow maintenance teams to 
add comments to a Work Order and comments initiated within HAS AM.  
Do we need to maintain the work order in the new system and then 
associate the comments to the work order? Or just need to maintain the 
comments in the new system? 

  Response HAS requires bi-directional integration to allow updates to work orders, whether 
update is generated in the new system or the AM system. 

36. Question Req 10b, Ability to integrate with Trak Smart Restroom application.  Is it 
outbound integration and what data need to be integrated from the Trak 
Smart Restroom application with the new system? 

  Response Trak Smart Restroom data resides in the HAS data warehouse and is available 
via API. 

37. Question Req 10c, Ability to integrate with incident management software (IMS) 
used for dispatching and recording incident details when dispatched to 
an incident at the airport.  Do we need to maintain the incident (Request) 
in the new system and then associate the work order? Is there any 
relationship between this incident and the inspections? 

  Response HAS would like to be able to establish a bi-directional integration with IMS IOT, 
send incident reports and updates, generated in the new system, to IMS and 
receive back the IMS incident record including IMS generated additions. This 
would allow the new system to be a single repository of all incidents and ease 
report generation. 

38. Question Req 15b, Seamless offline Synchronization with information downloaded 
to devices securely. Can you please provide an example? 

  Response Vendor-provided downloadable application for continued use of system when 
internet is not available.  
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39. Question Can you provide the roles of users in the new system?                                                     
a. Number of Total Users using the system?  
b. Number of Users using Inspection forms? 
c. Number of Users using Workorder forms? 
d. Number of Users using Incident (Self-Service Request) forms? 
e. Number of Administrators? 

  Response Total Users (Field Data collectors/Viewers): 300+    
Concurrent Users: 100    
Administrators/Power Users: 20 

 
 
 

END OF LETTER OF CLARIFICATION NO. 1 
 
When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the solicitation documents 
and shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with the Letter(s) of 
Clarification. All revisions, responses, and answers incorporated into the Letter(s) of Clarification are 
collaboratively from both the Strategic Procurement Division and the applicable City Department(s). It 
is the responsibility of the respondent to ensure that it has obtained all such letter(s). By submitting a 
proposal on this project, respondents shall be deemed to have received all Letter(s) of Clarification and 
to have incorporated them into their proposals.  
 
If you have any questions or if further clarification is needed regarding this solicitation, please contact 
Valerie Player-Kaufman at valerie.player-kaufman@houstontx.gov or 832.393.8749. 
 
 
Regards, 
 
 
 
Jedediah Greenfield  
Chief Procurement Officer 
 
 
C: File: T32552 
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